
   
 

 

 

 

  MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Thursday, October 24, 2019, 5:00 p.m. 

 

CSB Campus Board Room 

300 Medical Drive 

Hampton, VA 23666 
 

 

 

 
Board Officers 

Thomas F. Morehouse, III, Chair 

Venerria Thomas, Vice Chair 

Steven Bond, Esq., Treasurer 

June R. Owens, Secretary 

 

  Members of the Board of Directors 

    Golden Bethune-Hill Chris Bowman 

               Steven Brown Beatrice V. Dahlen 

             Arva Davidson Jane Hobbs 

                   Nosuk Kim Sheriff B.J. Roberts 

           Mary L. Stewart Timothy L. Supler 

             Elva Williams Hunt 

 
 

 

A CARF Accredited Agency



 
 

 

 

 

 

V i s i o n  
 

The Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board is the premier provider of 

behavioral health and intellectual and developmental disability services.   We are 

recognized throughout Virginia for our leadership, excellence and commitment to 

service.  We earn this distinction by creating a community where people can find their 

own strength and become self-determining. 

 
 

 

 

M i s s i o n  
 

To provide a comprehensive continuum of services and supports promoting 

prevention, recovery, and self-determination for people affected by mental illness, 

substance use, and intellectual and developmental disabilities, and advancing the 

well-being of the communities we serve. 

  



 
 

 
 

Strategic Planning Goals 
(2017 - 2021) 

 

Strategic Objective #1 

 

Continue to develop the administrative systems and service array necessary to 

maintain and further Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board’s 

reputation as THE premier provider in the context of the changing Virginia’s 

behavioral health system.  

 

Strategic Objective #2 

 

Pursue further revenue diversification and expansion of services, supports and 

prevention activities so that Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board 

can improve the quality of life for the individuals, families and communities we 

serve.   

 

Strategic Objective #3 

 

Celebrate and communicate the Hampton-Newport News Community Services 

Board’s performance and reputation as a center of excellence and center of 

influence, through on going engagement of the community we serve.   

 



 
 

 

INDEX 

 

HAMPTON-NEWPORT NEWS COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD  

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

Thursday, October 24, 2019 - 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

Documents                   Page # 
 

Cover Letter .................................................................................................................................. 1 

Agenda .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

Action Item .................................................................................................................................... 3 

Consideration Items .................................................................................................................. 3-4 

Information Items ...................................................................................................................... 4-5 

Program Highlights ................................................................................................................ 6-29 

 

 

Enclosures 

- - -  A-1. Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors Meeting 

                                                                 Scheduled on September 26, 2019 ....................... 30-40 

- - -  C-1.  Copy of Hampton Drug Treatment Court Graduation Invitation ............................. 41 

- - -           Board Planning Calendars .................................................................................. 42-43 

 

 

 

 

 

Red Folder Items 

- - -   C-2.   H-NNCSB 30th Annual Thanksgiving Luncheon Invitation and Donation Letter 

- - -  Media Articles



1 
 

 

 

 

 

DATE: October 17, 2019 

TO:  Members of the Board of Directors 

FROM: Natale Christian, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Meeting of the Board of Directors – October 24, 2019, at 5:00 p.m. 

CSB Campus Board Room, 300 Medical Drive, Hampton, VA 

 

Greetings Members of the Board: 

 

We hope that you are enjoying this nice fall weather as we move into the second quarter of the new fiscal 

year.  As we move forward with STEP VA, our theme for the new fiscal year is, “H-NNCSB S.T.E.P. Up 

Your Game”, which was rolled out to staff at our Annual Employee Appreciation Event held last week on 

October 9th. The event was well received and a fun time was had by all. 

        

Attached please find the Agenda and Package for the October Board of Directors Meeting scheduled on 

Thursday, October 24, 2019, at 5:00 p.m.  Please be advised that this month Members of the Budget, 

Finance and Audit Committee are scheduled to meet on Monday, October 21st, at 4:00 p.m.; and 

Members of the Community Relations / Governmental Affairs Committee are also scheduled to meet 

on Monday, October 21st, at 4:30 p.m.  Please also remember that Standing Board Committee meetings 

are open to all Members of the Board of Directors for the Hampton-Newport News Community Services 

Board. 

 

We look forward to seeing everyone next week. 

 

 

 

 

NWC:gvm 

Enclosures 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
300 Medical Drive, 2nd Floor   ●   Hampton, Virginia 23666   ●   Telephone: (757) 788-0300 ●   Facsimile:  (757) 788-0968-- www.hnncsb.org 

http://www.hnncsb.org/


2 
 

 

 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Thursday, October 24, 2019, 5:00 p.m. 

CSB Campus Board Room 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Remarks of the Chair 

ü Introduction of Guests  

ü Other Remarks 

3. Public Comment Period 

4. Action Item 

ü A-1 Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of September 26, 2019 

5. Standing Board Committee Reports 

ü Budget, Finance and Audit Committee  

ü Community Relations / Governmental Affairs Committee 

6. Consideration Items 

ü C-1 Hampton Drug Treatment Court Graduation Ceremony  ~  October 22nd    

ü C-2 H-NNCSB 30th Annual Thanksgiving Luncheon ~ November 13th   

7. Information Items 

ü I-1 STEP Virginia  

ü I-2 Medicaid Expansion 

8. Program Highlights 

9. Board Presentation:  STEP VA ~ Rapid Access 

10. Adjournment  



3 
 

 

 

 

ACTION ITEM 

 

October 24, 2019 

A-1. Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of September 26, 2019 

 

Issue:   Board approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on Thursday,     

September 26, 2019. 

 

Background:   Minutes of the Meeting held on September 26, 2019, are included in the Board 

Package for review by Members of the Board of Directors. 

 

ACTION:  Board approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on                       

September 26, 2019. 

 

Enclosure: Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on September 26, 2019. 

 
CONSIDERATION ITEMS 

C-1.  Hampton Drug Treatment Court Graduation ~ October 22, 2019  

 

Issue: Hampton Drug Treatment Court Graduation. 

 

Background:   For many years, the Hampton Drug Treatment Court has held graduation 

ceremonies for individuals who have met and/or exceeded their Drug Treatment Program goals.  

In your September Board Package, Members of the Board of Directors for the Hampton-Newport 

News Community Services Board were asked to “Save the Date” of this special event.   

 

Members of the Board of Directors should have already received your formal invitations from the 

Judges of the 8th Judicial Circuit requesting the pleasure of your company at the Hampton Drug 

Treatment Court Graduation Ceremony.  The event has been scheduled for next week on Tuesday, 

October 22, 2019, at 1:30 p.m. at the Hampton Circuit Court located at 237 North King Street, 

Hampton, Virginia. 

 

ACTION:  Members of the Board of Directors should have already received their formal 

invitations and are asked to contact Ms. Mercado with your availability, if you have not already 

done so. 

 

Enclosure: Copy of formal invitation to the Hampton Drug Treatment Court Graduation. 

 

 



4 
 

 

 

C-2.   30th Annual Thanksgiving Luncheon ~ November 13, 2019 

 

Issue: H-NNCSB 30th Annual Thanksgiving Luncheon. 

 

Background:   Each year the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board (H-NNCSB) 

hosts a Thanksgiving Luncheon that provides the individuals we serve with an opportunity to share 

a holiday meal with citizens in our communities.  This year, the H-NNCSB 30th Annual 

Thanksgiving Luncheon is scheduled on Wednesday, November 13, 2019, at 11:30 a.m., at the 

Hampton Roads Convention Center where the Honorable Jeion A. Ward, Delegate of the 92nd 

District, will be our Keynote Speaker. 

 

For your information, R.S.V.P.’s are due no later than Monday, November 4th, if you are available 

to attend this wonderful event.   

 

ACTION:  Members of the Board of Directors are asked to inform Ms. Mercado of their 

availability to attend this event at their earliest convenience. 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS 

 
I-1. STEP Virginia 

 

 Issue:  In order to meet the needs of the individuals served, we must offer more immediate access 

to services. The Same Day Access model is nationally recognized and insures that individuals 

seeking services are assessed and linked to appropriate services in a timely manner. The Hampton-

Newport News CSB refers to this step as Rapid Access. 

 

Background:  The System Transformation, Excellence and Performance in Virginia               

(STEP Virginia) model was designed to assure more consistency of services provided by CSBs 

across the Commonwealth. Through a collaboration between the Virginia Association of 

Community Services Boards (VACSB) and the Department of Behavioral Health & 

Developmental Services (DBHDS), STEP-Virginia is a system-wide transformation effort, and the 

recommendation of the Deeds Commission / SJ47 Committee.  This model promotes improved 

access to screening, assessment, and treatment.   
 

Updates:  Through the month of September, Rapid Access continued to see a large number of 

walk-ins in its adult clinic. Although an additional therapist has recently been added to the mental 

health outpatient clinic, we are beginning to see that additional support may be needed in Rapid 

Access as well to maintain pace with the number of walk-ins. The goal of the agency is to have 

the option of Rapid Access available to all who would like to walk-in for a same day assessment; 

however, the need to maximize our current resources has led to the need to establish a waitlist for 

internal clients who are seeking therapy services. We continue to emphasize to DBHDS that the 

current funding is not sufficient to address the needs that we have experienced since implementing 

Rapid Access. 

 

 



5 
 

 

 

Outpatient Services was implemented on July, 1, 2019. This step requires the provision of 

outpatient services to individuals in need of mental health and substance use disorder therapy 

within 10 days of assessment. It also requires the development of expertise in the treatment of 

trauma-related conditions through providing trauma-focused training to outpatient clinicians. 

Currently, the region is establishing a workgroup that will help to identify and coordinate training 

related to the fulfillment of this step. We continue to find that staffing presents an issue due to the 

number of clinicians needed to keep pace with the number of people seeking services and the 

scarcity of qualified staff.  

 

During the summer, we took the opportunity to inform our Legislators of the challenges faced with 

implementing STEP-VA including the insufficient amount of funding provided to implement the 

outpatient step. Additional funding was allocated in accordance with a needs-based formula 

adopted by DBHDS. The funding allocated for H-NNCSB will equate to approximately one 

therapist position which will not adequately address the agency’s need at the current pace. We 

have provided feedback to DBHDS on what we currently see as our needs, based on our 

experience, since implementing Rapid Access. We have also asked that they consider other factors 

such as the number of individuals served by our emergency services team, and the fact that both 

Hampton and Newport News experienced increases in opioid deaths during 2018 whereas other 

cities in the region experienced a decline. These factors along with the increased number of people 

walking in for services through Rapid Access indicate that there continues to be a need for mental 

health and substance use disorder outpatient services in our catchment area. 

 
I-2.  Medicaid Expansion 

 

Issue:  Medicaid and affordable healthcare are vitally important to individuals served by 

Community Services Boards.  

 

Background: After several years of Legislative activity, grassroots advocacy, and health care 

lobbying, Virginia has become the 33rd state to expand Medicaid under the Affordable Care Act. 

The Expansion, which went into effect on January 1, 2019, increases access to health care for an 

estimated 400,000 Virginians, and about 52,000 people in Hampton Roads will be Medicaid eligible 

for the first time, including approximately 13,000 who are living in Hampton and Newport News. 

We anticipate that a portion of our clients will be eligible for Medicaid with the new guidelines. 

The Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board (H-NNCSB) served over 4,000 

uninsured individuals last year. 

 

Update:   
As reported in last month’s update, H-NNCSB was advised by DBHDS that approximately 

$348,000 of the $500,000 reduction will be restored for FY 2019, and we received the distribution 

of these funds at the end of September. We are continuing to report to DBHDS on the revenue 

received each month which will guide the direction of the General Assembly in determining the 

amount of funding that will be restored for FY 2020, of which $1.3 million was reduced from our 

agency’s funding.  

 
 



6 
 

 

 

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 
 

CLINICAL 

 
CRISIS SERVICES 
Ryan R. Dudley, Director 

 
Strategic Objective #1: To continue to develop the administrative systems and service array necessary 

to maintain and further the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board’s reputation as THE 

premier provider in the context of the changing Virginia’s behavioral health system. 

 

ü Crisis Services Division continues to ensure timely and critical response to behavioral health 

crises, including assessment, intervention services and triage. 

 

¶ Emergency Services (ES) – Call volume for triage and requests for mandated and non-

mandated assessments remain high, which include contracted MH Assessments for Sentara 

Careplex Hospital (SCH) and Sentara Port Warrick Emergency Departments (SPWED).  In 

September, the program, led by Manager, Gina O’Halloran: 

o Conducted 292 F:F Assessments 

o Participated in 100 Commitment Hearings 

 

¶ Accepting Psychiatric Bed Capacity – Timely access to psychiatric beds remains as a critical 

issue, including impact of significant delays experienced in receiving response for referrals, a 

problem encountered at private and state facilities.  These delays or inability to locate an 

accepting private psychiatric bed: 

o Directly correspond to increased Safety Net Beds (SNB) to State Hospital. 

o Lengthens time in the ER, in law enforcement custody and duration of ES involvement 

prior disposition.  

o Increases number of placements, both private and diversion state hospital admissions 

outside of the region in order to access inpatient care   

o Complicates discharge planning and ability for family to participate in care. 

 

¶ Emergency Services’ Utilization of Safety Net Beds (SNB) - Census at State Hospitals has 

remained high over the past 2 months, impacted by the lack of accepting bed capacity at private 

hospitals, particularly for individuals presenting with high clinical acuity, medical complexity 

or may have aa DD diagnosis.  Internally, strong coordination occurs with our State Discharge 

Planning Team, who despite the increasing numbers continue to work to rapidly step-down 

individuals from state hospitals. 

 



7 
 

 

 

o NOTE:  Although reported at times 

that State Hospital census is related to 

an increasing number of TDOs issued 

statewide, FY19 numbers recently 

released demonstrate that it was 

actually the 2nd straight year that 

overall numbers of Civil TDOs 

decreased.    

 

 

o Trends clearly indicate that over the last 5 years the number of TDOs have remained 

fairly level or reduced, however the numbers of TDO admissions accepted by private 

hospitals has steadily decreased, which has forced the corresponding increase in 

admissions to the State Hospitals.   

o Reliance on the State Hospital as the ñBed of Last Resortò has led to ESH and other 

State Hospitals consistently operating at capacity, resulting in an increased number of 

diversions to other state facilities across the state.      

o As indicated, there has been an increase, both regionally and statewide in the number 

of DD individuals with requiring admission to state hospitals due to:   

Á Inability to find an accepting private hospital and with needs that exceeds what can 

be provided in the community.   

Á Includes several readmissions over a short period of time, including for individuals 

placed at REACH House, operated by WTCSB. 

Á  In addition, individuals with DD diagnosis are often dismissed at Commitment 

Hearing based on diagnosis, despite presence of co-occurring psychiatric diagnosis 

or other significant behavioral needs which impacts ability to stabilize their 

community placement.     

o ES has experienced difficulty with previously established protocols between ES and 

State Hospitals being followed for admissions and diversions.   

Á ESH’s Interim Director, Dr. Donna Moore has agreed to attend the ES Council 

Meeting on October 11th.  Despite challenges, Dr. Moore has demonstrated a 

willingness to openly communicate with ES Departments. However, the impact of 

the census and difficulties accessing available beds has tremendous impact at all 

levels. 

o Discussions regarding the impact if Virginia’s Emergency Custody Order (ECO) 

period, which is currently 8 hrs. was extended has continued.   

Á CSBs have advised that preadmission evaluations and recommended dispositions 

are made within the current ECO period.  The challenges continue to be identifying 

an accepting bed which would not be addressed with an extension. 

 

¶ Additional State Hospital Psychiatric Beds - DBHDS previously announced plans to add 

additional psychiatric beds in FY20 & FY21 based on the significant pressures on state hospital 

census and need for psychiatric treatment that has resulted due to the reduced number of TDO 

admissions accepted by private hospitals.  The following are planned actions of DBHDS: 

o Catawba State Hospital (Roanoke) - Adding 28 beds (Geriatric) in FY20 and an 

additional 28 in FY21.  The initial 28 beds reportedly will be phased in and online as 

follows:    



8 
 

 

 

Á 6-8 Beds within 3 months, 15 beds online in 6 months, and all 28 Beds in 9 months.  

Á  Catawba was selected as it had existing space available, requiring modification 

prior to use and for recruitment/hire.   

§ Beds are reported to be temporary measures only to address current growth in 

census and reliance on state hospitals for TDO admissions.   

o Western State Hospital (Staunton) - DBHDS has begun expansion of additional 

psychiatric beds anticipated to be online at the end of FY21. 

o Central State Hospital (Petersburg) -- In March, Governor Northam announced budget 

amendments to authorize construction of a 252-bed facility at Central State Hospital 

that would be ready within 5 years.  While 300 beds were approved for construction, 

only 252 will be built unless a workgroup convened by DBHDS determines the 

remainder are necessary.  It is anticipated that a net loss of beds will result.     

o Per DBHDS, they are ñencouraging private hospitals to use their estimated 25% 

capacity to alleviate census burden”.    

 

¶ HPR5 Hospital Forums are held quarterly with ESH, HPR5 Office, CSB Leadership and 

Private Hospital CEOs to address barriers to placement in local facilities.  The upcoming 

meeting on November 7th will be hosted by Pavilion Hospital in Williamsburg.   

 

¶ Children & Adolescents (C&A) – Continues to be limited access to inpatient beds (voluntary 

& involuntary) for children and adolescents which impacts the census at Commonwealth 

Center for Children & Adolescents (CCCA), who has experienced a significant increase since 

the end of the summer.   

o CCCA – In the morning on Friday, September 20th CCCA was operating at 75% of 

their capacity, however by the morning of Sunday, September 23rd, DBHDS advised 

that they were operating at capacity. 

o RBHC’s Adolescent Acute Unit reopened on July 1st after a year of closure, however, 

beds are capped around 12 as they continue to recruit a psychiatrist.   

o ES coordinates with YFS providing a daily log of C&A assessed to assist with 

identifying and engaging Children’s Mobile Crisis, Urgent Care, Case Management, 

TDT and Psychiatric Services as appropriate. 

o Crisis and YFS Divisions worked collectively on our submission for the HPR5 

Regional Children’s Mobile Crisis plan as part of STEP VA.   

Á The submitted plan would provide additional mobile staff in the YFS Division, 

specifically working with children and adolescents.   

Á Remainder of funding for the Crisis Step has been identified by DBHDS to be 

targeted specifically for adults with SMI with cognitive impairments but do not 

have a DD diagnosis which in effect provides the additional dollars to REACH.     

o The impact of MCOs on children’s services, which includes difficulty accessing 

services and approval of initial and reauthorization of services (In-Home & TDT) 

appears to have led to the increase of individuals presenting through crisis channels, 

including in the ER due to absence of or inability to sustain other services. 

 

¶ Forensic Services’ Utilization of State Hospital Forensic Beds – The Census at ESH, 

consistently operating at or near capacity, is reportedly two-thirds Forensic Admissions.  This 

number continues to increase each month resulting in less beds available for Civil TDOs.        



9 
 

 

 

o Approximately one-third of beds are for NGRI and another third consisting of 

Restoration for Competency Orders and Criminal TDOôs for individuals from 

correctional custody requiring psychiatric hospitalization. 

o HPR5 Regional Forensic Committee will hold their quarterly meeting on October 22rd.  

The Committee’s focus is to identify challenges, potential problem-solving measures 

and to formulate recommendations.    

o The Workgroup is advocating for a separate VACSB Sub-Committee for Forensic 

Services due to the complexities and overall impact on the state hospital census.  

 

¶ Emergency Services’ continues to experience difficulties with staffing and recruitment for 

vacancies due to challenges of 24/7 coverage, volume and work in these high stress 

circumstances under mandated timeframes.      

o Presently, the program has one Full-Time vacancy which we are recruiting for in 

addition to Part-Time.      

 

¶ The Regional Crisis Stabilization Center (RCSC) under leadership of Dr. Posadas, Crisis 

Medical Director and Ron Clark, Program Manager the program continues to monitor and 

address utilization and access to residential crisis stabilization services as and adjust workflow 

accordingly based on other obstacles and challenges, including impact of MCOs.   

o The 3 Regional CSUs communicate regularly about utilization trends and other 

challenges and met on October 1st at RCSC.   

o As part of the Behavioral Health Redesign, DBHDS and DMAS, it is anticipated that 

recommendations will result that be significant to CSUs. 

Á Major focus to reduce volume of individuals presenting to the ER and potential 

recommendations that include co-locating CITACs, adding Observation Units and 

a Drop-Off/Walk-in components.   

Á Models discussed will be very challenging to implement prior to changes of the 

Code of VA, addressing workforce constraints and without other systemic changes 

including a new reimbursement model to operate.   

 

¶ Crisis Intervention Training Assessment Center (CITAC) – Assists law enforcement by 

allowing transfer of custody to onsite Deputy for individuals under ECO, enabling them to 

return to public safety duties.  Our Stakeholders, particularly SCH & Hampton Police 

Department have been pleased with the impact that our CITAC has and has consistently 

requested expanded hours if there were an opportunity.   

o Currently, we are working on a response to a recent DBHDS notice for potential 

funding, due on October 28th that will be allocated to enhance existing CITAC sites.  

Our submission will request funding to support additional security and clinical 

personnel while expanding our current hours (12p-8p weekdays).     

Á Expanded hours allow the program to operate from 12p-12am throughout the 

week.     

o Presently, we are working with NNSO regarding their ability and timeframe to staff 

additional hours, which may include use of “Carry-Forward Fundingò to increase 

security.  These additional hours would be supported ongoing if our request is 

approved.  DBHDS previously reached out to HNNCSB regarding a potential plan 

should funding be available based on the substantial increase in our numbers since we 

reestablished our site at SCH.  



10 
 

 

 

Á Expanded hours will allow transfer of custody of individuals under ECO so that 

HPD can return to the streets. 

Á Decrease need for HPD to return to CITAC and reassume custody due to limited 

operation hours. 

 

¶ Jail Diversion/Restoration Services (JD) continues to work with our partners with diverting 

individuals with mental illness from correctional care to alternative community-based 

treatment options.  Mr. Barker, Forensic Services Manager and his staff continue to work 

closely with the Courts and Pre-Trial. In September: 

o Diverted 5 individuals with mental illness from correctional custody to more appropriate 

community-based treatment placements.   

o Conducted a total of 36 crisis assessment and counseling sessions. 

o Jail Diversion Reentry planning following 35 individuals to assist with community care 

needs post jail release. 

o Currently has 8 individuals being seen by the CSB psychiatrist who are in correctional 

custody. 

  

¶ Restoration Services (RS) – During the month of September, 2 new orders were received 

and able to disposition and close 12 cases making a total of 13 active cases at month’s end.  

Based on prior information regarding forensic admissions at ESH for Restoration Orders, we 

have trained additional staff to provide these services in the community, which by definite 

includes correctional facilities.        

 

¶ DBHDS Forensic Discharge Planning (HRRJ) – HNNCSB continues to collaborate with 3 

partnering CSBs (CIBH, NCSB, & PBH) and the Hampton Roads Regional Jail (HRRJ) 

providing enhanced discharge planning for individuals identified as SMI.  The project is one 

of two statewide grants awarded by DBHDS and currently funded thru this current fiscal year.    

o All 3 grant funded Forensic Discharge Planners (FDP) remain filled.  Each of the other 

CSBs have 2 funded positions.   

o Funds psychiatric time for SMI individuals being released from HRRJ. 

o The CSBs, HRRJ, and their medical contractor meet monthly to review 

progress toward grant goals.  In addition, DBHDS will now join meetings. 

o FDP is currently serving 11 individuals who have transitioned out of correctional 

custody and with 2 additional with pending releases.  We are following a large volume 

within HRRJ without an identified release date.  FDPs offer short-term intensive 

services following reentry including short-term funding through the grant to support 

housing, medication, and basic needs. 

o During September, 18 individuals in HRRJ were assessed. 

 

ü Crisis Services will examine workflow, infrastructure and staffing to ensure rapid access to 

treatment.  

 

¶ The Regional Crisis Stabilization Center (RCSC) – Continual process improvement efforts 

with workflow to achieve efficiencies, increase capacities and to deliver enhanced care.   

o Our RN Supervisor, Ms. Anita Charnock previously provided resignation effective 

October 1st, however has extended to December 15th while we continue to recruit for 

the position. 



11 
 

 

 

o Selected our LPN candidate to fill the position which has been vacant.     

o CSB & RBHC Leadership continues to meet regularly regarding our partnership, to 

address current and future goals of our service agreement, which includes meeting 

contracted staffing needs.    

Á RCSC continues to adjust our processes as able to address the difficulties 

encountered with MCOs. 

Á As other programs experience, significant time that would otherwise be applied 

to clinical services is instead encumbered with tracking, completing and 

responding to registrations and authorizations including responding to duplicate 

requests for information already submitted.   

  

ü Crisis Services will monitor all financial processes tied to service delivery to assure in meeting 

revenue projections. 

 

¶ Crisis programs continue to review productivity, revenue targets and to ensure that programs 

continually adapt processes, maximize revenue opportunities and billing, and are responsive 

to financial services.  

¶ Utilization at RCSC (also experienced by other CSUs) continues to fluctuate and is tied to 

multiple variables, however the program continues to maximize revenue opportunities and 

work closely with our Financial Services Department to monitor and mitigate the impact of the 

MCOs.   

 

Strategic Objective #2: To pursue further revenue diversification and expansion of services, supports, 

and prevention activities so that the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board can improve 

the quality of life for the individuals, families, and communities we serve. 

 

¶ Newport News Behavioral Health Docket (NNBHD) – The NNBHD is currently serving 

17 participants, which included four assessments in September.  At the present time, the 

program is exceeding our cap of 15 as we anticipate a couple cases closing in the immediate 

future.     

¶ Hampton Behavioral Health Docket (HBHD) – Judge Smith has recently submitted the 

final working copy of the HBHD’s Policy and Procedure Manual, Participant Handbook and 

Application for approval to the Supreme Court to operate. 
o Our Therapist, Ms. Lynette Fogg, M.A., passed her Licensure Examination in September 

and is awaiting her official license as an LPC.  Ms. Fogg has served the agency for 

approximately 4 years in the TDT program, prior to joining HBHD on July 1st. 

o Based on her experience and skill, Ms. Fogg is assisting the TDT Program in addressing 

their volume of assessments while awaiting our docket’s approval.  In addition, she is 

assisting in multiple areas in Forensic Services with NNBHD and Restoration Services.  

Strategic Objective #3: To celebrate and communicate the Hampton-Newport News Community 

Services Board’s performance and reputation as a center of excellence and center of influence, through 

ongoing engagement of the community we serve.   

 

ü Crisis Division continues to work closely with our community stakeholder partners to enhance and 

improve service accessibility for individuals experiencing psychiatric crisis. 



12 
 

 

 

¶ Crisis leadership continues to meet consistently with Sentara Careplex Hospital to enhance and 

expand our partnerships.  Sentara has requested H-NNCSB’s input on the need of additional 

Psych. Services and discussion on potential partnerships. 

¶ Meets routinely with RBHC to enhance our partnership with RCSC and for access community 

inpatient beds on behalf of Emergency Services.   

¶ Coordinate Quarterly Stakeholder’s Meeting with our partners focused on problem-solving 

efforts to address challenges encountered for individuals in psychiatric crisis.  Stakeholder 

Membership consists of: SCH, RRMC, RBHC, HPD, NNPD, NNSO, Magistrate and Special 

Justice.   

¶ We have requested that DBHDS leadership attend the next meeting if able on October 15th to 

assist in updating our members based on the complexities and current challenges.     

 

Other Items of Interest: 

  

¶ Region-5 Emergency Services Council - ES Manager, Gina O’Halloran represents HNNCSB 

on the HPR5 ES Council, which meets monthly at HNNCSB.  Crisis Director frequently 

participates.  On October 11th, the Council will meet with the HPR5 CSUs and Dr. Donna Moore, 

Interim Director for ESH.  

 

¶ Statewide Behavioral Health Redesign Crisis Workgroup - Ms. Christian, Executive 

Director and Ryan Dudley, Crisis Director serve as participants on the Statewide Behavioral 

Health Redesign Crisis Workgroup focused on the future redesign of statewide crisis services.  

The Workgroup, first met on August 1st, meeting several times that month; however nothing 

since.  During the final week of September, a request was sent regarding assignments to 

potential subgroups.     

 

¶ Region-5 Crisis Workgroup – Representatives from Crisis (Ryan Dudley) and YFS (Lisa 

Hogge) Divisions are participating with Dr. Cunningham and Ms. Christian and other regional 

CSBs to address the upcoming STEP VA Crisis step for Children Mobile Crisis Services.  Ms. 

Christian co-chairs the workgroup with Eastern Shore CSB’s Executive Director.     

 

¶ Region-5 Forensic Advisory Team – The HPR5 Forensic Advisory Committee, co-chaired 

by Dr. Kristen Hudacek, ESH & Mr. Barker, HNNCSB meets quarterly with next meeting 

scheduled for October 22nd.  Meredith McLane, Manager, Reinvestment and Crisis Director 

also represent HNNCSB.    

 

¶ Regional (HPR-5) Crisis Stabilization Unit (CSU) – Regional CSUs met on October 1st at 

RCSC and are also scheduled to meet with the ES Council on October 11th.  Mr. Clark and 

Crisis Director participate. 

 

¶ Statewide CSU Meeting - Held semi-annually, last met on May 15th.  Both Program Manager, 

Ron Clark and Crisis Director. 

 

¶ Hampton-News Criminal Justice Board (HNNCJB) and Re-Entry Council (Hpt & NN) – 

Mr. Barker, Adult Forensic Manager continues to represent the agency.  
 

¶ Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) – The next scheduled class is set for December 9th-13th.   



13 
 

 

 

ADDICTION AND RECOVERY TREATMENT SERVICS (ARTS) 
Anthony Crisp, Director 

 
Strategic Objective:  To continue to develop the administrative systems and service array necessary to 

maintain and further the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board’s reputation as THE 

premier provider in the context of the changing Virginia’s behavioral health system. 

 

ü ARTS will continue to build-out its array of treatment and recovery services as community 

demands dictates and funding is available. (1A, 1D) 

 

¶ We were successful in our response to another DBHDS MAT (medication assisted treatment) 

RFP. With this RFP, we hope to improve our outreach, response time and accessibility to 

IV/OUD using women; to include those that are pregnant and postpartum.  

¶ The Peer Recovery Specialists (PRS) at HRC have exerted extra effort during this month to 

educate, support and engage clients in improving group attendance. Both Peer Specialists 

facilitate two groups per week. Peer run orientation groups are at a 90% attendance rate. The 

PRS(s) are also in the lobby daily during dosing (medication dispensing) hours to provide 

support, and information to all clientele. 

¶ The Peer Recovery Specialists at PIR have become more integrated into the services by 

working along with the medical and clinical staff to reach out to clients that are in non-

compliance in attending their groups and individual sessions. The peers are also calling clients 

to remind them about upcoming OBOT appointments, and to keep them engage until the 

OBOT appointments have been conducted. 

 

ü ARTS will examine workflow, infrastructure and staffing to assure rapid access to treatment. (1E) 

 

¶ Project Link has restarted its standing intake appointments Monday- Thursday at 10:00 to 

support rapid access to Project Link.   

¶ HRC has re-organized the group counseling service delivery process.  All clients have been 

assigned to a group as clinically indicated. A new group attendance roster (sign-in sheet) has 

been developed to track clients’ group attendance monthly.  

¶ All services under the ARTS Division is making a diligent effort to enroll an individual into 

services within 10 days or less from 1st contact. 

 

ü ARTS leadership will monitor staff productivity to assure budgeted targets are met. (1B) 

 

¶ Programs that are fully staffed have achieved or exceeded their projected productivity targets.  

 

ü ARTS will continue to provide up-to-date training to staff to meet the changing needs of the 

behavioral healthcare environment, which includes public policy changes, population 

demographics and various evidence-based practices that better meet the needs of the people we 

will serve. (1G) 

 

¶ Staff in the various ARTS Programs attended a variety of training during this reporting period.  



14 
 

 

 

Strategic Objective:  To pursue further revenue diversification and expansion of services, supports, and 

prevention activities so that the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board can improve the 

quality of life for the individuals, families, and communities we serve. 

 

ü ARTS leadership will work closely with DMAS, DBHDS and CCC+ MCOs to minimize out-of-

pocket expenses to person served, but maximize revenues from third-party payers. (2B)  

 

¶ We have been successful in educating and assisting uninsured individuals that pay out of 

pocket, based on their income, or come to us under one of our many grants for services to apply 

for Medicaid. Many have become eligible for Medicaid and no longer need grant assistance or 

have to pay a great amount out of pocket. 

¶ On September 24, 2019, Lillian Chamberlain, Clinical Services Administrator, participated in 

a training webinar on: OTPôs New Medicare Benefit Proposed Rule Listening Session. 

 

ü ARTS leadership will work with the agency’s Communication and Development Director to 

promote and make the community aware our service continuum. (2B) 

 

¶ The SEFP Open House was a tremendous success. It was well attended and many alumni 

returned and shared how SEFP was instrumental in their recovery. 

¶ Ms. Christal Britt, SEFP Residential Supervisor, participated in Senator Kaine’s Maternal 

Health Round Table Forum on 9/24/19. 

¶ Program staff across the ARTS Division have partnered with the agency’s Communication and 

Development Director to plan this year’s Recovery Month activities. All activities were well-

attended. 

¶ During Recovery Month, Project Link staff hosted a movie activity for the residents of the 

South Eastern Family Project at the Project Link office. The residents appeared to thoroughly 

enjoy this special event. 

¶ During Recovery Month, HRC hosted a Client Recognition Ceremony (clients recognized for 

recent progress made towards recovery). Clients also enjoyed refreshments and several weeks 

of recovery focused movies. 

 

Strategic Objective:  To celebrate and communicate the Hampton-Newport News Community Services 

Board’s performance and reputation as a center of excellence and center of influence, through ongoing 

engagement of the community we serve.   

 

ü All programs will obtain feedback from person served through forums, surveys and suggestion 

boxes. This feedback will be used to enhance services and improve customer service. (3C) 

 

¶ All programs are utilizing the Board’s approved one page survey questionnaire. This one page 

survey has made it easy for us to solicit feedback and for the persons served to respond. The 

number of responses and the written comments have been extraordinaire. Sample feedbacks 

include this one from Project Link--“My caseworker is very attentive and does everything to 

the best of her ability. She has taken me to appointments, etc. and always offers her services 

and directs me to other services that she can’t provide; and this one from SEFP—“…I think it 

is awesome that pregnant women have an alternative to jail; the groups are very good and 

helpful…” 



15 
 

 

 

¶ Feedback from clients at HRC includes maintaining the operation of two dispensing windows 

during the 5 hour of daily medication schedule. The program is currently experiencing nursing 

vacancies and is challenged with having to conduct drug screens and to provide dispensing 

service during the same timeframe. 

 

ü ARTS leadership will continue to work with our community partners and stakeholders to enhance 

services, to improve service accessibility and increase service utilization in all program area. (3B, 

3C) 

 

¶ Project Link and SEFP supervisory staff attended the Peninsula Maternal Mental Health 

Coalition meeting to network and build effective working relationships with community 

agencies that work with pregnant and postpartum women and their children.  

¶ The Men’s SA CM Program Supervisor attended the 2019 Peninsula Re-Entry Summit in an 

effort to promote the Re-entry Case Management program, identify new resources and 

information and to build relationships with community partners.  

¶ The Drug Court Administrator is working with Step VA on the Veteran Services Workgroup 

in an effort to increase military, veterans, and military family member services at the CSB’s.  

¶ The Drug Court Administrator and the ARTS Director also met with representatives from the 

Joint Leadership Council of the Veterans Services Organizations concerning strategies to get 

more veterans enrolled in the state’s veteran’s treatment dockets. 

¶ The Drug Court Administrator met with a representative of Suffolk’s Public Defender’s Office 

to educate her on the planning of a drug court.   

¶ The Drug Administrator, Sherry Glasgow, is also on the Professional Development/Training 

subcommittee of the Virginia Drug Court Professionals. 

¶ Lillian Chamberlain and James Strickland, Clinical Services Administrators, attended an 

educational reception about the state of Virginia’s opioid crisis hosted by the Darden College 

of Education and Professional Studies at Old Dominion University. ODU will be providing 

coursework for students interested in working in the addiction field. 

¶ Lillian Chamberlain was a panel member for a sponsored PCOR Opioid Educational Seminar 

held on September 14, 2019. 

 

Other Items of Interest: 

  

¶ The Peer Recovery Warm Line (757-251-2394) went live, August 25, 2019, after in-depth 

training provided to Peer Recovery Specialists. The Warm Line is staffed by peers seven days 

per week 8:00 am–11:00 pm. The Peer Recovery “Warm–Line” is a toll free phone line to 

call for non-emergency peer support and/or community resource information for individuals 

and/or family members, seeking help, support and/or information about substance use 

disorder.   

¶ Hampton Drug Court Graduation Ceremony is October 22, 2019; 1:30 p.m., where the 

Honorable Anton Bell, Commonwealth Attorney, will be the keynote speaker. 

  



16 
 

 

 

ADULT CLINICAL SERVICES 
Robert Deisch, Director 

 

I. Activities accomplished in the given month that is linked to our strategic plan and your 

service division goals and objectives:  

 

Initiative: Develop a plan and process for the implementation of behavioral health and primary 

healthcare. 

 

¶ Regional Supervised Housing / Transcend Place 

o MHRSH Program Nurse and Program Manager continue to coordinate to ensure that 

all individuals’ medical and psychiatric appointments were scheduled accordingly. 

Individuals are accompanied to all of their appointments and the case managers have 

become more involved in these appointments as well.  We keep an open line of 

communication regarding psychiatric concerns which appear to be well received by the 

clinic and case managers as several residents have been switched to liquid medication 

to decrease the refusal/cheeking of medications. 

 

¶ PACT/ICT & PACT Forensic 

o PACT staff, primarily the nursing staff, continue to coordinate to ensure that all 

individuals’ medical appointments were scheduled accordingly. Individuals are 

assisted with appointments based on individual’s needs. Some individuals are 

accompanied to all of their appointments and some individuals are able to coordinate 

their medical care independently. In the past several months staff have also coordinated 

with medical hospitals and a physical rehab when individuals have required admission 

to those facilities.   

 

¶ PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 
o PATH and NN Outreach continues to have client’s enroll in Health Care for the 

Homeless and utilizing SEVHS clinic on HNNCSB Campus. Health care for the 

Homeless provides 1 year of general outpatient medical care. Medicaid expansion has 

made access to treatment much smoother. Clients choose a primary care physician and 

mental health physician. Specialty care is obtainable. This is so important since so 

many of the homeless population has gone without any medical care for a long period 

of time. Staff always suggests SEVHS on campus as a possible primary care physician.  

  

¶ Adult Mental Health Case Management 

o CMs are making sure that the client’s not seen at our clinic are getting BMI screenings 

and making the necessary referrals. 

      
Initiative: Provide opportunities for training and development that would allow staff to advance 

into leadership roles. 

 

¶ Adult Mental Health Case Management 

o All required trainings are kept up to date.  



17 
 

 

 

o Supervisors cover for Manager in his absence and Case Managers Cover for 

Supervisors in their absence. 

 

¶ PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 

o The supervisor has either David Hudson or Sara Pastian cover in her absence. Sara also 

covers the Service Coordination and Assessment Network (SCAAN) meeting for the 

supervisor.  In this meeting cases and referrals to programs are discussed and 

consumers are directly linked to services. Changes to participants in the HMIS 

committee now include Dee Schwartz, Sara Pastian, David Hudson, and Deoanna 

White.  These committees are under the GVPHC (Greater Virginia peninsula Homeless 

Consortium). All committee members share updates at Team meetings. Participation 

of these committees is part of grant expectations with the GVPHC who monitors and 

ranks our Permanent Supportive Housing Programs.   

 

¶ PACT/ICT & PACT FORENSIC 

o PACT has two staff members who are currently in clinical supervision seeking 

licensure.  

o All staff are constantly encouraged to participate in training and opportunities that will 

help them advance in their careers (i.e. seeking licensure, taking advantage of 

additional trainings offered by the agency, and returning to school for continued 

education). Staff are currently completing Motivational Interviewing training 

purchased with the SAMSHA block grant. The grant also allowed PACT to send staff 

to the NAADAC conference.    

  

¶ Regional Supervised Housing / Transcend Place 

o We have two new MH-Counselors and have hired two new part time Community 

Services Associates who begin work on 9/30/19. 

o Manager and Supervisor have completed the online portion of the peer supervisors 

training and plan to attend the classroom portion in Suffolk On October 30th 2019. 

 

Initiative: Homeless Services will maximize outreach and engagement to reduce                             

homelessness in the community. 

 

¶ Road 2 Home 

o Supervisor attends the SCAAN meetings twice a month to present clients before we 

proceed with housing.  Outreach workers go out in the community twice a week and as 

needed to find homeless individuals and assist them with any resources they may need 

and referrals. Our outreach worker is providing outreach on Monday mornings at the 

new Four Oaks Day Center.    

 

¶ PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 

o NN Outreach and PATH staff remain busy with outreach to area shelters and the great 

outdoors. The Four Oaks day center for the homeless provides another site for outreach. 

PATH and NN Outreach staff have regularly scheduled hours at the day center. Four 

Oaks Day Center will provide transportation on Wednesdays to walk in day. A formal 

referral system has been set up between PATH and the Four Oaks Day Center.  

Currently PATH has 12 clients enrolled for community based case management 



18 
 

 

 

services and medication management. There are also 4 scheduled intakes for the week 

10/7/2019. This is low for PATH. The drop in numbers is caused by vacant positions. 

Currently PATH is enrolling new clients weekly.  NN Outreach currently has 22 clients. 

Safe Harbor has 2 female openings. Their capacity is 23. Onward capacity is 16 and 

currently has 1 male opening. Staff will continue present and receive referrals at 

SCANN meetings every two weeks for PATH and Permanent Supportive Housing with 

Safe Harbor and Onward.  

 

o Safe Harbor had 1 move to permanent housing during this period. A client moved to 

Great Oaks Apartments. PATH and Newport News Outreach assisted clients with 

moving to Safe Harbor, Onward, Shelter Plus Care and the community.  PATH/Staff 

continues with presenting and accepting referrals from SCAAN committee for referral 

to all housing programs. Many other clients have transitioned to Adult MHCM 

services, SA CM services and Project Link Case management services that have 

Medicaid.  

 

Initiative: Adult Mental Health Case Management will strive to eliminate the waiting list for those 

individuals with Medicaid. 

 

¶ Adult Mental Health Case Management 
o In August and Sept we assigned 25 cases and opened 18 Medicaid clients.  

 

¶ PACT/ICT & PACT FORENSIC 

o One new individual was enrolled in the month of September. We are currently pursuing 

enrollments of individuals on our wait list.        

 

Initiative: Maintain a strong working relationship with MCOs to improve the integration of 

Behavioral Health and Primary Care.  

 

¶ Adult Mental Health Case Management 

o Manager, Supervisors and case managers continue to be accessible to the care managers 

from the MCO’s to answer questions and provide assistance 

 

¶ PACT/ICT & PACT Forensic 

o Supervisors and Service Coordinators continue to be accessible to the care managers 

from the MCO’s to answer questions and provide assistance 

 

Initiative: Adult Mental Health Case Management will work to improve the care coordination and 

linkage to Behavioral Health and Primary Care.  

 

¶ Adult Mental Health Case Management 

o Case Managers continue to link clients to Southeastern Virginia Health System when 

they do not have an assigned Primary Care Physician and continue to encourage clients 

to obtain annual physicals, attend all medical appointments, and to address medical 

needs on the Individualized Service Plan and during collateral or face to face contacts. 



19 
 

 

 

¶ Reinvestment Case Management, Consumer Monitoring and Mobile                        Crisis 

Response Team 

o Staff continue to provide linkages to medical care, including referrals to primary care 

providers.  

 

¶ PACT/ICT & PACT Forensic 

o Service Coordinators and Nursing staff continue to link clients to Southeastern Virginia 

Health System when they do not have an assigned Primary Care Physician and continue 

to encourage clients to obtain annual physicals, attend all medical appointments, and 

to address medical needs on the Individualized Service Plan and during collateral or 

face to face contact 

 

¶ PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 

o Onward and Safe Harbor Permanent Supportive Housing Programs are accepting 

referrals from SCAAN for their openings. The PATH and NN Outreach staff are busy 

engaging with new client’s daily to fill these spots. Other referrals come from the 

shelters and both cities codes and compliance and city manager’s office. Emergency 

Housing/Shelter for the men and women remains full.  Also the Day Center for the 

Homeless remains open. PATH and Newport New Outreach have regular outreach 

hours at the Center. The center has become a regular spot on the Outreach Workers 

time in the community. The center is opened 7 days a week.  PATH and NN Outreach 

will benefit from locating clients with more ease. The client are benefiting from this 

service.  

 

¶ Reinvestment Case Management, Consumer Monitoring and Mobile                                

Crisis Response Team 

 

o Reinvestment Case Management-  

In the month of September, there were 6 acute care admissions, and 5 discharges.  

 

o Consumer Monitoring- Staff continue to monitor Civil and Not Guilty by Reason of 

Insanity (NGRI) forensic cases. In the month of September, there continued to be a 

high volume of admissions and discharges at the State Hospitals. As for the NGRI 

consumers in the month of September, there were a total of 55 NGRI consumers, 32 in 

State hospitals (ESH, CSH and SVMHI), and 23 on conditional release. One NGRI 

acquittee is in temporary custody and has been recommended for conditional release, 

pending a hearing date in November 2019 to determine commitment or conditional 

release. 

o Mobile Crisis Response Team- In the month of September, there were 15 consumers 

served. The MCRT team continues to be fully staffed with two case managers and one 

peer recovery specialist.  

   

o All teams have been effective with assisting individuals with applying for benefits, 

including Medicaid Expansion. 

 

 

 



20 
 

 

 

¶ PACT/ICT & PACT FORENSIC 

o At the end of September there were a total of 92 clients enrolled in both PACT and 

PACT Forensic. Medicaid enrollment is 73. We have 9 non-Medicaid consumers. Nine 

consumers are currently in jail, state hospital, or medical rehab and continue to be 

monitored. No consumers are currently Medicaid pending. 

 

o Waiting List  

1. Medicaid- 10. We expect to be able to complete 2 new admissions monthly 

2. Medicare - 4 

 

II. Updates/trends (local, state, federal) relevant to your service area  

 

¶ PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 

o Calls are still continuing for families of all sizes continue daily looking for shelter and 

housing. Staff refers these call to the Regional Housing Crisis Hotline. The homeless 

population continues to outweigh the availability of shelter and emergency or PSH 

beds. The winter shelters are set to open the first week in November. As the cooler 

weather approaches PATH/Homeless Services staff and clients are thankful for this 

addition of services.  

 

¶ Reinvestment Case Management, Consumer Monitoring and Mobile Crisis Response 

Team:  

There continues to be a significant number of Safety Net Bed admissions to State Hospitals 

during this time period. There was an increase in admissions for individuals diagnosed with 

Intellectual or Developmental Disabilities.  This is an added challenge with discharge 

planning. 

 

Several discharge planning staff attended a Regional Military Culture and Suicide 

Prevention Summit. 

 

IIII.  Service recognitions and/or other items you want to brag about that is relevant to your 

service area 

 

¶ Regional Supervised Housing / Transcend Place 

o We have hired two new part time Community Services Associates and are working to 

fill 2 part time CSA positions. 

 

¶ PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 

o All programs and clients are grateful for Medicaid Expansion. PATH supervisor has 

been completing webinars PATH and HMIS requirements. . PATH staff are scheduled 

for Virginia Housing Conference in November.        

 

¶ PACT/ICT & PACT FORENSIC 

o PACT was able to work with Jail Diversion staff resulting in the release of two of our 

individuals from custody. 

 

 



21 
 

 

 

¶ Adult Mental Health Case Management 

o AMHCM continues to donate to our food pantry to assist our clients in need. We assist 

two clients with obtaining housing. We are fully staffed. 

  

¶ Road 2 Home 

o This was a three year grant which started in 2015 and last year was extended for another 

year. During this past year from 10/1/2018 – 9/30/2019 the budget was reduced 

reducing staff from 10 to 6 and expected to house an additional 23 individuals. With 

the reduction in staff they were able to meet this requirement along with maintaining 

quality services to the total 84 currently housed. It was the outstanding work of the staff 

that made this grant successful. All 6 staff will be transferring to the Permanent 

Supported Housing Program. 

 
YOUTH AND FAMILY SERVICES 

Lisa S. Hogge, Director 

 
Strategic Objective #1: Continue to develop the administrative systems and service array necessary to 

maintain and further Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board’s reputation as THE premier 

provider in the context of changing Virginia’s behavioral health care system.   

 

ü 1A:  Continue development of H-NNCSB as the leader in integrated, comprehensive behavioral 

healthcare services.  

 

¶ The NN Juvenile Justice Services program has partnered with the Child and Adolescent 

Comprehensive Outpatient Services (C&A COA) program to expand services for 

adolescents with substance-related issues.   The first cycle of treatment groups began on 

September 25, 2019 on the CSB campus with Tara Hazard Patterson as the licensed 

facilitator.   

¶ The NN Juvenile Drug Court therapist, Juquala Dunlap, was selected to attend Moral 

Reconation Therapy (MRT) training hosted by the Department of Behavioral Health and 

Development Services that will be held in late October.  MRT is a curriculum that is 

implemented with youth served in Juvenile Justice Services. 

    

Strategic Objective #2:  Pursue further revenue diversification and expansion of services, supports and 

prevention activities so that the H-NNCSB can improve the quality of life for the individuals, families and 

communities we serve.  

 

ü 2B:  Maintain key 3rd party payers, expand and maximize current revenue sources, and explore 

new, profitable service opportunities.   

 

¶ In recognition of National Recovery Month during September, the NN Juvenile Drug Court 

participants and NN Court Services youth attended activities including the Wellness Fair 

on the HNNCSB campus and the “Real Talk” event hosted at the Downing Gross Center.         



22 
 

 

 

¶ The families of the individuals served in the NN Juvenile Drug Court were selected by the 

NN Clerk’s office to receive donations for Thanksgiving.   The NN Clerk’s office will 

present donations on November 20, 2019.    

¶  As a premier provider of Therapeutic Mentor Services, the following activities are planned 

for the fall of 2019:  

o Monthly game nights on the first Tuesday of every month to foster problem solving 

skills, team building skills, enhance self-esteem, and further socioemotional growth. 

o A minimum of two groups per month with youth ages 15 and up to advance 

independent living skills utilizing curriculums from Preparing Adolescents for Young 

Adulthood (PAYA Casey Life Skills) Modules.    

o Expressive therapies, weekly, offering the opportunity to creatively express feelings 

through the creation of art.   

o In October, the program will host a Fall Festival including face painting, a pumpkin 

decorating contest, and a candy hunt.   

o The program will host a Thanksgiving Celebration for the youth on November 19, 

2019.  During the celebration, youth will be encouraged to display thankfulness through 

designing cards for members of the armed services which will be sent to soldiers on 

deployment. 

o The Mentor Program offers a weekly healthy lifestyle program, which will continue 

throughout the academic year.  The program focuses on healthy eating habits and the 

importance of having an exercise regime. Youth have reported that the exercise, in 

particular, has helped relive feelings of frustration and has assisted with coping skills 

development. 

 

ü 2C:  Maximize collaboration and integrate with local or regional primary care systems and 

behavioral health and developmental services providers.   

  

¶ Early Impact Virginia held a focus group on the topic of Universal Screening at the Smart 

Beginnings of the Virginia Peninsula on October 1, 2019.  Universal screening is conducted for 

pregnant women for the purpose of promoting healthy birth weight for newborn children and 

providing resources and linkage to services.  This is accomplished through the coordination of 

SBVP, physicians, hospitals, stakeholder, and community agencies, inclusive of the HNNCSB 

and Healthy Families programs.  Early Impact Virginia and Virginia Department of Health are 

collaborative partners in administering and supporting Virginia’s MIECHV-funded work, of 

which, SBVP Universal Screening is one of those funded programs.  

¶ The Newport News Healthy Families Case Management team is in the planning phase for 

initiating use of the evidence-based Parents as Teachers home visiting model, which will go into 

effect on January 1, 2020.  PAT model goals are to prevent abuse and neglect and to promote 

positive and effective parenting, good health, and school readiness.   

 

 

 

 

 

https://earlyimpactva.org/


23 
 

 

 

Strategic Objective #3: Celebrate and communicate Hampton-Newport News Community Services 

Board’s performance and reputation as a center of excellence and center of influence, through ongoing 

engagement of the community we serve.   

 

ü 3C: Expand relationships with stakeholders, consumers and advocates to inform service delivery, 

market state of the art services and communicate organizational successes to the larger behavioral 

healthcare and developmental services system. 

 

¶ The HNNCSB plans to host a booth at Hampton City School’s (HCS) Wellness Fair at the 

North Hampton Community Center on October 10, 2019 to increase community awareness 

about agency services. 

¶ The HNNCSB will also participate in the My Future, My Journey Career Exploratory Program 

with the Academies of HCS on October 15, 2019.  Staff will also attend a second event on that 

date entitled the HCS Community Resources and Services Fair.     

¶ A planning meeting was held on October 2, 2019 between the HNNCSB and the Newport News 

Public Schools (NNPS) related to plans for the board to begin providing Outpatient Therapy in 

two schools including the Discovery Stem Academy and McIntosh Elementary School.  This 

exciting new endeavor is developing and pending state licensure.  This partnership is being 

developed at the request of Dr. George Parker, NNPS Superintendent.   

¶ Under the direction of Dr. Debbie Hood, Hampton TDT Coordinator, contracted Substance 

Abuse psycho-education group services continue with the most recent session held on October 

4, 2019.   

¶ In support of NNPSS, Nicole Jackson, Administrator, continues to serve on the advisory team 

for Mental Health Wellness and will assist in the planning for this year’s Rise Male 

Empowerment initiative.    

Updates/Trends (local, state, federal) relevant to service area 

 

¶ Hampton & Newport News Therapeutic Day Treatment (TDT) Services 

o Nicole Jackson, TDT Administrator, maintains her role as the Chair of the TDT Coalition.  The 

Coalition will meet in person on November 1, 2019 at the VACSB.  All participating boards 

are experiencing a negative budgetary impact on programming as it relates to MCO changes.  

The statewide Behavioral Health Redesign remains at the forefront of discussion.  Many 

CSB’s, like HNNCSB, are expanding school based services to include case management, 

outpatient therapy, and improved access to crisis support.  

 
MEDICAL SERVICES 

Baltej S. Gill, M.D., D.F.A.P.A., Senior Medical Director 

Anne Whitaker, RNC, BS, Director of Nursing and Adult Outpatient Services 

 
Promote wellness and grow the integration of primary care and onsite pharmacy services. 

 

¶ Psychosocial Rehabilitation Program (PSR) Bright Beginnings continues to promote wellness 

through their daily walking group where individuals walk around campus as well as staff 

encourage indoor exercise group for those that do not want to walk outside.  Staff also offer Fitness, 



24 
 

 

 

Nutrition, Health Education and Wellness Groups on monthly calendar for individuals to 

participate.   Riverside Nursing Students and Norfolk State University students continue their 

clinical rotation at Bright Beginnings on Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Fridays to provide education, 

measure vitals and support wellness initiatives.   Staff encourage individuals to take care of their 

appearance with trips to the Virginia School of Hair where individuals have their hair cut and nails 

filed for personal care. 

 

¶ PSR Clinicians promote additional fitness activities by going to Boo Williams Sports Complex to 

walk the track or play basketball, walking outside at beach or Nature Park, bowling at Spare Times 

Bowling, going to local museums, and offering cooking classes.  Individuals are referred to 

SEVHS for primary care and encourage individuals to utilize Genoa, the campus pharmacy.  

 

¶ Adult Comprehensive Outpatient Services (ACOS) continues to provide primary care screenings 

and nurses are working hard to ensure individuals are following through with their Annual Lab 

work.  The Care Coordinator, continues to assist individuals in scheduling follow up with PCP and 

collaborates with providers.  Staff continue to promote the use of SEVHS for the primary care 

needs and encourage Genoa Pharmacy for one stop shopping.  Individuals with chronic illness are 

informed and encouraged to participate in Chronic Disease Self-Management classes offered in 

the community.  These 6 -8 week classes are free and held throughout the community. 

 

Retain current and prospective Physicians, Nurses, Therapists, Counselors and Coordinators to 

allow timely access to services:  

 

¶ Psychosocial Rehabilitation:  Bright Beginnings has 2 licensed clinicians to assist with 

assessments to enroll new members and approve continued services for current members.  Our 

program positions are all currently full with no vacancies; 5 full-time Day Support Clinicians, 1 

full-time Manager, 1 full-time Office Associate, and 3 part-time Peer Recovery Specialists.  

Average daily member attendance was 29 in September. We continue to actively work through the 

wait list and schedule intakes throughout the month.  However, no shows for the intake and failure 

to follow through with program once enrolled, remains a challenge.  There were 5 no shows in 

September and 3 new enrollments.  

 

¶ ACOS Medication Services said goodbye to Joanne Kizer, RN on September 30 as she just 

celebrated 29 years with the agency and is moving on to retirement.  We wish her all the best and 

thank her for her years of service.  We will have a new nurse starting next month.  The clinic is 

serving 2,474 individuals and we continue to call clients off the waitlist. 

 

¶ ACOS Therapy Services is fully staffed and are working hard to meet the Rapid Access demands 

of seeing individuals within 10 days and also initiated completing internal assessments to bring 

individuals off the wait list. 

 

¶ Peer Recovery Specialist, Sherea Ryan, is helpful in making reminder calls and offering 

transportation for all new and hospital discharge appointments.  She engages with clients and helps 

individuals to cope with their illness. 

 



25 
 

 

 

Medical Services Division will enhance our collaborative relationships with our community 

partners to strengthen our individual referral base, improve communication when transferring care 

and maximize revenue. 

 

¶ PSR Manager has contact with local hospital case management and social workers to assist in a 

smooth transition back to community. 

¶ PSR participates in bi-monthly outings to the local Food Bank in Hampton to link individuals to 

community resources.  The program also distributes lists for other food bank locations for 

individuals to access independently.   

¶ PSR hosts DARS Rehabilitation Counselor, Debra Atkins, monthly to follow up with current 

referrals and communicate with members that were accepted to start vocational services.  Ms. 

Atkins has been very thorough and remains in contact with program staff to link members to 

training and job opportunities in the community. 

¶ PSR staff work with Goodwill Employment Center and take individuals to the center for basic 

classes and assistance is provided in improving their technology skills.  The individuals also had 

the opportunity to participate in the job fair held in September and continue to go monthly to local 

job fairs.  

¶ PSR’s newly formed Discharge Planning Group was implemented to assist with linking 

individuals to community based services, develop wellness plans, refer to private providers, and 

assist with training needs, i.e. scheduling transportation.    

 

¶ ACOS medical staff routinely interact with local hospitals, jails, primary care providers and 

MCO’s as well as many groups such as Peninsula CARE Coalition for Chronic Condition 

Awareness, Resources and Education, Elder Abuse Task Force, Elder Forensic Center and 

Peninsula Task Force on Aging that have a shared interest in the populations we serve.  

 

 

Medical Services Division will stay abreast and meet the constant changing demands of Managed 

Care Organizations, Magellan, DMAS, Medicare, and Licensing entities. 

 

¶ All programs are working with the Managed Care Organizations and completing authorizations as 

needed.  United Healthcare Community Plan of Virginia implemented a new online request form 

that was effective August 26, 2019 and will only accept authorization requests through 

providerexpress.com online portal.  Registration and training completed for this process.  There 

have also been some changes in submission fax numbers for Aetna Better Health of Virginia, 

which is communicated amongst CMHRS programs.  

 

Professional Development: 

 

¶ Crystal Ruffin, QMHP, attended Recognizing and Responding to Suicide Risk: Essential Skills for 

Clinicians (RRSR) training at the Campus Suicide Prevention Center of Virginia in Williamsburg 

September 10-11.  

 

¶ Toni Plummer, NP, Meriah Holtzclaw, LPN, Anita Jarrard, LCSW attended the Mass Violence 

Response on September 27 in Virginia Beach. 

 



26 
 

 

 

Complete quarterly outcome measures to evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of our services 

and individual satisfaction. 

 

PSR completed their consumer satisfaction surveys in September and average positive response was 93% 

with a total of 30 surveys completed.  Lowest positive response was 83% for question- The air temperature 

is comfortable.  We had issues with air conditioning unit in September. 

Some of the comments received; 

I appreciate everyone here, I have grown a lot here, and I do enjoy coming here.  Thank you all for your 

support. 

Larger clock and tissue box in day room please. 

Need to fix air conditioner ASAP. 

Bingo – Bingo. 

I would like to know when I graduate. 

Chocolate milk. 

 

Psychosocial Rehabilitation Monthly Happenings 

9/6- Closed for Hurricane Doriane. 

9/10- Volunteer at Coliseum Park Nursing Home 

9/12- Bowling at Spare Times 

9/20- Cook Out at Buckroe Beach 

9/23- Virginia Aquarium 

9/25- Job Fair at Goodwill Employment Center 

Recovery Month Events; 9/11- walk around campus, 9/12- wellness fair, 9/25- SEFP open house, and 

9/27- Bright Beginnings open house.  We had an excellent open house with about 50 visitors for our art 

and talent show, sharing of personal stories, and showcasing our program activities and benefits to 

members.  

Additional activities include: AA/NA meetings weekly, computer classes offered twice a month, and 

various community outings to local stores, attractions and parks. 

 
DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES 

Carol McCarthy, Director 

 
Developmental services supports 906 individuals between children and adult support coordination.  There 

are 485 individuals that receive Community Living Waiver, 94 Family & Individual Support Waiver, and 

25 Building Independence Waiver.   The waiting list currently consist of the following:  

 

Priority 1-50  /  Priority 2-252 /   Priority 3- 154 

 

On 6/17/20 all Community Service Boards received a Memo regarding the FY20 Developmental 

Disabilities Wavier Slot Allocation.   The total number of waiver slots approved by the General Assembly 

was 132 Community Living and 806 Family & Individual Support for the Commonwealth.    The 

HNNCSB received 5 Community living and 29 Family & Individual Support Wavier Slots.  The 

Hampton-Newport New Community Services Board presented 37 individuals to the Waiver Slot 

Allocation Committee (WSAC) from 9/18-9/20.   

 



27 
 

 

 

The Developmental Services Support Coordination team is concerned about staff retention.  There has 

been a significant turnover in support coordination over the past few years which impacts the continuity 

of care.  The Developmental Services Director has made some changes to the orientation of new support 

coordinators as a result of the exit interviews.  The comments from the exit interviews stated that there 

was not sufficient training and that cases were assigned shortly after they were hired.  This process has 

been changed and there has been positive feedback regarding the training that is now for one month with 

the Program Specialist and a full caseload after six months of employment. Currently there are two adult 

support coordination vacancies.  

 

The WaMS /EHR integration is still in progress.  The support coordinators are directly entering the annual 

plans into the WaMS while the HNNCSB continues to sort out the issues of the integration of these two 

systems.   

 

The Program Specialist has worked diligently on providing the support coordinators training on specific 

areas that address system changes and or trends identified in record reviews.  The list of trainings include: 

 

¶ Modeling how to facilitate an ISP meeting, Intake meeting, writing outcomes and 

conducting a VIDES.  

¶ Reviewing new SC’s progress notes and ISPs to offer advice and suggest improvements.  

¶ Developed training for all SCs, CO and Residential Supervisors, and Counselors for new 

ISP 3.0 to include developing a system to ensure Life Course tools are utilized in ISP 

meetings, Face to Face visits, and Collateral contacts.  

¶ Provided assistance in creating a new format for non-waiver ISPs with Child and 

Adolescent SCs.  

In summary, the Support Coordinators have experienced many changes in their job requirements; 

however, there are great stories that demonstrate the quality of their work and the success story of the 

individual.  Below is just one example of what support coordination entails on a daily basis.       

 

To have seen Darlene Moore, Support Coordinator, in action over the last five days (8/16 – 8/20), one 

would never know that she had just finished her probationary period on August 11, 2019.  Darlene showed 

the finesse of a well-seasoned support coordinator as she worked diligently to find what we hope is a 

“forever home”.  Darlene received a call mid-afternoon on Friday indicating that the individual she 

supports had been abruptly discharged from the residential and group day support setting due to recent 

and frequent episodes of being physically and verbally aggressive, as well as property destruction.  The 

individual was taken to MaryView Psychiatric Hospital, only to be released a short time later.  The hospital 

arranged Uber transportation from Portsmouth to his mother’s home in Newport News. Upon arriving 

home, the family indicated that he could stay for the weekend until a more permanent arrangement could 

be made.  On Monday, Darlene received several messages reporting that the individual had been “dropped 

off” at Riverside Regional Medical Center Emergency Room, because the family could not “handle him”.  

With the coordinated support of SC supervisor and Community Resource Specialist, Darlene set out to 

reach numerous providers who would do emergency Respite or who would accept the individual on a 

permanent basis; but a provider who had male staff. The individual works well with and responds better 

to a male staff. 

 

At the end of Monday, two possibilities were firming up; however, they both fell through at the ninth hour.  

One was a male provider whose back up staff is female, therefore, they did not feel comfortable with 

taking the individual, after saying yes a short time prior.  The second was a strong possibility, however, 



28 
 

 

 

the provider would not be able to see the individual until the following day (Tuesday) after indicating the 

intent to see the individual on Monday at the Emergency Room.  Darlene remained determined.  She 

coordinated with the family to pick up the medications and his personal belonging and took them to the 

hospital where she was able to secure them with the support of an ER Technician and the hospital 

Emergency Room Case Manager. The individual had nowhere to go, thus he spent two and a half days 

and three nights in the ER where he was monitored the entire time by hospital staff. 

 

There was anticipation and hope as Tuesday started.  The potential provider had another delay and was 

now unable to see the individual until 10:30am, from the original 9am suggested time.  Darlene remained 

cool, calm and collected, feeling that this was the right placement because the provider has experience 

with working with difficult individuals.  As 11am approached, Darlene got the call she had been waiting 

for from the provider.  Darlene met the provider at the hospital so that there would be a familiar face for 

the individual during the transitional phase.  The potential provider agreed to accept the individual, yet it 

took much encouragement from Darlene to the individual to promote trust.  When individual said “I’m 

thirsty” and the provider jumped in and said they would stop to get a drink and food the individual’s 

demeanor improved. 

 

The individual enjoys his new home and has adjusted well.  According to Darlene, he has become more 

engaging during conversations.  There have been no incidences reported.  Behavior Consultation is in 

place and REACH is onboard and Community Coaching is being discussed.  His male residential sponsor, 

his male roommate, and him, have created a “man-pad”.  Things are on the right trajectory for this to be 

“his forever home”. 

  

The Developmental Services Day Program, Creative Options, has an average daily attendance of 89 

individuals.  The individuals all have various activities that they participate in daily.  Most recently the 

focus has been on increasing social and recreational activities in the community all of which empower the 

individuals to develop relationships with the non-disabled.   As part of the integrated activities the 

individuals have participated in the following:  

 

¶ Habitat Restore 

¶ Mayors Committee 

¶ Newport News Sheriff’s Office 

¶ Air and Space Center 

In addition to the volunteering events the individuals participate in meaningful activities which are often 

displayed throughout the Creative Options building.  I have provided you an example of the beautiful art 

that is currently being displayed.  

 

   

 



29 
 

 

 

Residential Services supports 45 individuals in the Medicaid Waiver homes and 15 individuals in the 

ICF/IID.  There has been a lot of activity over the past few months with the ICF/IID programs.  The 

Aberdeen Waiver home converted to an ICF/IID and was certified on 5/23/19. Winburn Place received its 

annual recertification on 7/16/19 with no deficiencies.  On 8/22/19 Gilbertson Lodge receive their annual 

certification and there was one deficiency.  The annual certification involves the program meeting over 

400 Department of Health Regulations.  The outcome of these certifications demonstrates the dedication 

and skills of our supervisors and   staff in these homes.    

 

On 6/30/19 the Supported Living program was closed due to budgetary constraints.  The eight individuals 

supported in this program were successfully placed with other in-home providers.    

The staff in this program were offered positions within the HNNCSB.  Of the eight employees all choose 

to remain with the HNNCSB with the exception of two.   In regards to staff, there continues to be a 

continuous turnover with the Direct Support Professionals.  In addition, there has been a decrease in the 

number of qualified applicants.  As a result of these challenges there has been changes to the interviewing 

process.  The interviews are taking place every other week and second interview process has been 

implemented to ensure that applicants are aware of their job duties and expectations.  Also, a PRN Policy 

is being drafted to begin a list of employees that are available which will be efficient in covering various 

shifts and reduce overtime.       

 

As the residential program continues to focus on the Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) the 

staff have been providing opportunities for individuals to   explore the greater community.  An example 

of this is giving one of our individual’s the choice of riding the church bus rather than the staff transporting 

them to church.  She has met many friends is considering joining the church choir.  Also, this individual 

is a member of the Home Owners Association for her neighborhood.  

 
 

 

 
 



30 
 

 

 

 

 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Thursday, September 26, 2019, 5:00 p.m. 

CSB Campus Board Room, 2nd Floor 

 
Present: Mr. Thomas Morehouse, III, presiding; Mr. Steven Bond, Mrs. Beatrice Dahlen, 

Mrs. Jane Hobbs, Mrs. June Owens, Sherriff B.J. Roberts, Mrs. Mary Stewart, Mr. 

Timothy Supler, Mrs. Venerria Thomas, and Dr. Elva Williams Hunt. 

 

Staff: Mrs. Natale Christian, Dr. Daphne Cunningham, Mrs. Raymona Barnes,                  

Dr. Melanie Bond, Ms. Joy Cipriano, Mr. Robert Deisch, Mr. Ryan Dudley,               

Mrs. Sherry Hunt, Mrs. Lisa Hogge, Mrs. Carol McCarthy, Mr. Thomas Miller, 

Ms. Denise Newlon, Ms. Kim Thompson, Ms. Anne Whitaker, and Ms. Mercado. 

 

Guest(s): Mrs. Ann Abdullah, Mrs. Dominique Gilliam, and Mrs. Taekeia Dowling. 

 
CALL TO 

ORDER Fiscal Year 2020 began with a meeting held by Members of the Board of Directors 

for the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board on Thursday, 

September 26, 2019.  Mr. Thomas F. Morehouse, III, Board Chair, called the 

meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. after welcoming Members of the Board, Guests, and 

Staff to the meeting.  
 
REMARKS OF  

THE CHAIR Before starting with the business portion of the meeting, Mr. Morehouse asked that 

present Members of the Board of Directors introduced themselves.  He also   

advised that Mrs. Golden Bethune-Hill, Mr. Chris Bowman, and Ms. Nosuk Kim 

communicates their inability to attend the September Board of Directors Meeting 

due to previous engagements. 

 
INTRODUCTION 

OF GUESTS Mrs. Natale Christian, Executive Director, introduced guests and Mr. Thomas 

Miller, Director of Information Technology.   

 
 

A-1 



31 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

Page 2 

 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

 
A-1. A Motion was made to accept the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held 

on Thursday, June 20, 2019, as presented.   

 

ACTION There being no corrections or comments, the Minutes of the Board of Directors 

Meeting held on Thursday, June 20, 2019, were accepted as presented. 

 

A-2. In the absence of Mr. Steven Bond, Committee Chair, Budget, Finance and Audit 

Committee, who was running late from another meeting, Mrs. Beatrice Dahlen 

reported that for almost 20 years, Performance Contracts between Community 

Services Boards (CSBs) and the Department of Behavioral Health and 

Developmental Services (DBHDS) have been required and serve as the 

performance and accountability documents between the State department, CSBs, 

and the localities they serve.  She communicated that the document describes the 

values, roles and responsibilities of the three operational partners in the public 

services system.  Mrs. Dahlen continued that while it is customary for Members of 

the Board of Directors to review and approve the Performance Contract before the 

end its previous Fiscal Year, the Community Services Performance Contract was 

received from the Department later in the year, and after the end of year Board of 

Directors Meeting held on June 20, 2019.  She pointed out that Members of the 

Budget, Finance and Audit Committee held a brief telephone conference on 

Tuesday, September 24, 2019, at 4:30 p.m. in its efforts to meet parliamentary 

protocol for this very time sensitive process. In closing, Mrs. Dahlen announced to 

the Board of Directors for the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board 

the recommendation of Members of the Budget, Finance and Audit Committee that 

Members of the Board approve the FY19-FY20 Community Services Performance 

Contract ~ Renewal and Revisions. 

ACTION There being no corrections or comments, Members of the Board of Directors for 

the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board unanimously approved 

the FY19-FY20 Community Services Performance Contract ~ Renewal and 

Revisions. 

 

 

 

 
 

A-1 



32 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

Page 3 

 

 

BOARD STANDING  

COMMITTEE  

REPORTS 

 
Board Quality 

Management Dr. Elva Williams Hunt, Committee Chair, of the Board Quality Management 

Committee, directed that Members held their quarterly meeting on Monday, 

September 16, 2019, at 4:00 p.m., in the CSB Campus Board Room.  She continued 

that at their meeting Members received an update on the Local Human Rights 

Committee and received presentations from the Quality Management Division with 

regard to Regulatory and Compliance updates, statistics on Incident Reports and 

Sentinel Events, as well as the recently implemented Root Cause Analysis System 

from the Dept. of Behavioral and Developmental Services.   

 

Members of the Board of Directors were informed by Dr. Williams Hunt, that 

during the Committee meeting, Mrs. Karen Matthews, CSB Compliance and 

Standards Manager reported that since the last meeting of the Committee, two 

meetings of the Southeast Alliance Local Human Rights Committee were held and 

that a few changes were being made.  It was shared that one change was that the 

Local Human Rights Committees would be condensed and while the Southeast 

Alliance will remain, the Virginia Beach and Suffolk Local Human Rights 

Committees would be closing.  She also announced that the Region is looking for 

Advocates since the Southeast Alliance Local Human Rights Committee currently 

had two membership seats that needed to be filled.  Dr. Williams Hunt inquired that 

any interested Member of the Board to please advise Ms. Mercado.  It was 

announced that the next meeting of the Southeast Alliance Local Human Rights 

Committee was scheduled for Tuesday, October 15, 2019, at 3:00 p.m. in the CSB 

Campus Board Room.   

 

Dr. Williams Hunt remarked that Members of the Committee were also provided 

with Presentations from Mrs. Alicia Gaston, Quality Assurance Manager, who 

reported that the Dept. of Behavioral and Developmental Services’ (DBHDS), 

Office of Licensing had conducted several different reviews of the Hampton-

Newport News Community Services Board through June 2019.  Which included 

licensing reviews, audits, quality reviews, and risk management reviews.  She 

advised Members of the Board that during the Board Quality Management 

Committee meeting, Members of the Committee not only received 2nd and 3rd 

quarter internal Utilization Review information, they were also provided with the 

statistics of Continuous Quality Improvement Efforts which included a FY2018 

Record Review Comparison by Program; more than 400 Quarterly Program Driven  

 
A-1 



33 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

Page 4 

 

 

Record Reviews; 9 Health and Safety Inspections; not to mention updates from 

meetings held by the CSB Risk Management Committee who discussed the status 

of some of the CSB’s health and safety protocols.   

 

While in the area of Health and Safety, Dr. Williams Hunt noted that Members were 

provided an update on the status of the “Civilian Response to Active Shooter Event” 

(CRASE) Trainings, as well as the State Police Agency Walk Thru.  She advised 

Members that it was her pleasure to report that most staff of the CSB had already 

completed their CRASE Training and the 2nd portion of the State Police Agency 

Walk Thru had been scheduled in early October.  Members of the Board were 

instructed that and update on the latter would be provided to them as soon as the 

information became available.  

 

That being reported, Dr. Williams Hunt asked the Member of the Board to please 

Save The Date of Tuesday, February 11, 2020, at 4:00 p.m., as next meeting date 

of Members of the Board Quality Management Committee and to feel free to join 

the meeting. 

Budget, Finance, 

and Audit At the request of Mr. Morehouse, Mr. Bond shared that in addition to their brief 

telephone conference,   Members of the Budget, Finance, and Audit Committee 

held their first official meeting of the new Fiscal Year on Monday, September 23, 

2019, at the new time of 4:00 p.m.  He elaborated that at their meeting, Members 

received their new Meeting Schedule for the remainder of the fiscal year and were 

provided with an update on the FY19 External Audit.  He continued that Members 

also thoroughly reviewed the Financial Statements and Operating Results of the 

Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board and its entities; namely, the 

H-NNCSB Property Company, Inc., the Share-A-Homes of the Virginia Peninsula, 

and the Trust for Disabled Persons, through July 31, 2019. 

 

Mr. Bond noted that as Members were welcomed to Fiscal Year 2020 by                     

Ms. Denise Newlon, Chief Financial Officer, she provided several fiscal topics for 

the new budget year.  The topics included STEP VA, where staff have successfully 

implemented the “Same Day Access” (also known as Rapid Access), the “Primary 

Care Screening”, and the “Outpatient Services” phases of this initiative.                      

 

Ms. Newlon also provided Members with an update on the FY19 Audit, where she 

noted that the CSB is in the final stages of the Audit and that all feedback has been 

positive.  She anticipated that the CSB will receive a clean, unmodified audit 

opinion from CSB Auditors, Robinson, Farmer, Cox.  Mr. Bond pointed out that  

in her update, Ms. Newlon indicated that the CSB was notified by the Department 

of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services advising that it would restore 

 

A-1 



34 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

Page 5 

 

 

$347,500 to the CSB to cover the $499,000 lost in the FY19 State General Grant 

Fund reduction as a result of Medicaid Expansion.   Furthermore, the Department 

of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (DBHDS) realized that a 

majority of the Community Service Boards did not make up the funds DBHDS had 

reduced.  Moreover, it was communicated that the Hampton-Newport News 

Community Services Board also has a $1.3M reduction in funds coming through 

for FY2020. 

 

It was referenced by Mr. Bond, that Members were also advised of continued 

challenges with Managed Care Organizations due to delayed authorizations for 

services, reimbursements, and denials.  He remarked that Ms. Newlon also apprised 

the Committee of multiple grant funding opportunities the CSB is involved in as 

staff continue to diversify funding streams by seeking multiple grant opportunities.  

Current opportunities discussed included grants for the Addiction and Recovery 

Treatment Services (ARTS), Housing Grants, as well as a one-time grant in the 

amount approximately $70,000 to assist with the Program of Assertive Community 

Treatment (PACT). 

 

It was emphasized that, as is customary, Ms. Newlon directed Members of the 

Budget, Finance and Audit Committee through a review of CSB Cash Balances, 

Aging and Earned Revenue Reports, Unbilled Services, and Health Insurance 

information announcing that CSB employee rates will remain the same for the new 

insurance year.   Members were also provided a thorough report of the CSB’s 

Divisional Net Income, Comparative Balance Sheet, and Profit and Loss 

information for the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board and its 

entities as noted earlier in the meeting.   

 

Mr. Bond also asked that Members of the Board acknowledge that the next meeting 

of the Budget, Finance and Audit Committee had been confirmed for Monday, 

October 21, 2019, at its new time of 4:00 p.m.  For their convenience, a copy of the 

meeting calendar had been provided for Members of the Board in their Red folders.   

Community  

Relations/  

Governmental  

Affairs Mrs. Beatrice Dahlen, Committee Chair, advised that Members of the Community 

Relations / Governmental Affairs Committee also held its first meeting of the new 

Fiscal Year on Monday, September 23, 2019, at its new time of 4:30 p.m.  She 

stated that at their meeting, the Committee received updates from staff with regard 

to matters of the Virginia General Assembly, Legislature, Local Initiatives, and the 

Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services.  Members also 

 

A-1 



35 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

Page 6 

 

 

briefly confirmed who would be in attendance at the upcoming 2019 Public Policy 

Conference of the Virginia Association of Community Services Boards scheduled 

in October and reviewed Board Member Events.  

 

Members of the Board were advised that during the meeting, Mrs. Sherry Hunt, 

Director of Communications and Business Development, reviewed the Legislative 

Engagement Calendar with Members.  The Calendar provided advocacy efforts of 

the Committee from May 2019 through the end of the Fiscal Year.  The Committee 

also received an overview of One-on-One Meetings held over the summer months 

with our Congressional and State Legislators.  During discussion, Mrs. Dahlen 

inserted that the meetings included a meeting with Delegate David Yancey to 

discuss House Bill 4024, which he introduced, regarding Mental Illness and Gun 

Violence.  Committee Members also discussed a Campus tour with Candidate 

Shelly Simonds; and a visit by Senator Tim Kaine.   She remarked that Mrs. Hunt 

also updated Members of the Committee on the CSBs State Budget Requests and 

Legislative Priorities for the 2020 Session of the Virginia General Assembly.  

Members of the Board were informed that a copy of both the Legislative 

Engagement Calendar and CSB Legislative Priorities had been provided for their 

review in their red folders.  

 

Mrs. Dahlen commented that statewide, Mrs. Christian shared that Mrs. Mira 

Signer, Chief Deputy Commissioner of the Dept. of Behavioral Health and 

Developmental Services, was now serving as the Acting Commissioner due to the 

unfortunate death of Commissioner S. Hughes Melton.  Members were also 

reminded of the recent appointment of Mrs. Christian to the Governors Substance 

Abuse Council which met on September 25, 2019, in Richmond.  Moreover,       

Mrs. Dahlen pointed out that Dr. Daphne Cunningham, Deputy Executive Director, 

gave an update on the status of the STEP VA Initiative which currently includes 

the  Same Day Access / Rapid Access; Primary Care Screening; and Outpatient 

Services Phases of the initiative.  It was explained that Members were provided 

with the current number of individuals served by the CSB, and the fact that the CSB 

had been seeing more children over the summer months.  It was also mentioned 

that the CSB has a 96% rate of individuals being seen by Therapist within the 10-

days of assessment as required by STEP VA.   Additionally, Mrs. Christian 

expressed to Member of the Board of Directors that the Hampton-Newport News 

Community Service Board would undergo a Needs Assessment Survey on           

October 10th and 11th, which had been issued by the Dept. of Behavioral Health and 

Developmental Services.   

 

 

 

A-1 



36 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

Page 7 

 

 

Locally, Mr. Dahlen shared that both Mrs. Christian and Dr. Cunningham, met with 

Hampton City Manager Mary Bunting and Asst. City Manager Steven Bond, to 

provide them with an update on the Hampton-Newport News Community Services 

Board; and that the CSB Leadership Team conducted a presentation at a Newport 

News City Council Work Session seeking approval of the Agency Budget and 

FY19 - FY20 Performance Contract – Renewal and Revisions.  

 

Finally, in her report to the Board of Directors, Mrs. Dahlen mentioned that 

Members of the Community Relations / Governmental Affairs Committee 

reviewed several Board Member events to include the VACSB 2019 Public Policy 

Conference scheduled from October 2nd through October 4th; the H-NNCSB Annual 

Employee Appreciation Event scheduled at the Boo Williams Sportsplex on 

October 9th; the Hampton Drug Treatment Court Graduation scheduled on         

October 22nd; and the Annual Thanksgiving Luncheon just confirmed for 

November 13th.  Members of the Board were instructed to find additional 

information regarding events in their red folders.  They were also asked to be 

mindful of a mailing regarding the Thanksgiving Luncheon event information, and 

that Members of the Board make Ms. Mercado aware of your availability for these 

very important events. 

 

There being no additional information to discuss, Mrs. Dahlen announced that 

Members of the Community Relations / Governmental Affairs Committee 

scheduled their next meeting for Monday, October 21st, at 4:30 p.m., in the Campus 

Board Room.  She reminded that as all Standing Board Committee Meetings are 

open to all Members of the Board and asked that available Members feel free to 

join the Committee on October 21st, as they continue to advocate and be the voice 

for the individuals served. 

 
CONSIDERATION 

ITEMS Mr. Morehouse reiterated that as mentioned in the Committee Report of                 

Mrs. Dahlen and reported in the September Board Package, Members of the Board 

of Directors had a few events to consider attending during the months of October 

and November.  He asked that Members review their red folders for additional 

information and provide Ms. Mercado with their availability to attend any, or all, 

of the events as soon as possible. 

 
 

 

 

A-1 



37 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

Page 8 

 

 

INFORMATION  

ITEMS  

 
FY20 Board  

Retreat Update Mrs. Christian welcomed Members of the Board of Directors to Fiscal Year 2020, 

noting that the year had already proven to be a very busy year although staff are 

looking forward to the challenges ahead.  She continued noting that she received 

some very good responses with regard to the FY20 Board Retreat held on                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

August, 22, 2019, and themed ñRenewed Commitment and Advocacyò.  It was 

pointed out that the Retreat included presentations by Ms. Denise Newlon, Chief 

Financial Officer, on Accounting 101 to assist Board Members with their fiduciary 

responsibilities; as well as a Housing presentation from Ms. Joy Cipriano; and an 

update on STEP Virginia and Medicaid Expansion by Dr. Daphne Cunningham.    

Recovery Month ~ 

Open Houses   It was mentioned by Mrs. Christian that the month of September was Recovery 

Month, and she hoped that available Members of the Board were able to attend a 

few of the activities coordinated by Mrs. Sherry Hunt, Director of Communications 

and Business Development. She specified that the events included, but were not 

limited to, the yearly Open House at the Southeastern Family Project held earlier 

in the month, as well as the Bright Beginnings Open House scheduled the next day 

on September 27th.   

30th Annual 

Thanksgiving 

Luncheon  Mrs. Christian also advised Members that CSB staff are gearing up for the 

upcoming Annual Thanksgiving Luncheon.  She also shared that donation letters 

and invitations to the event are scheduled to go out in the next week with copies of 

donation letters to be included in the October Board Package.  Mrs. Christian added 

that this year the CSB’s Child and Adolescent Services would be highlighted and 

that Mrs. Lisa Hogge, Director of Youth and Family Services will spearhead this 

area of the event. 

Civilian Response 

To Active Shooter 

Events (CRASE) Mrs. Christian reported that Dr. Melanie Bond, Director of Quality Management, 

was still working on the CRASE Trainings, and that Mr. Dean Barker, Forensic 

Services Manager and Coordinator of CIT Services, had reached out to the Virginia 

State Police who came out a few days over the Summer and conducted a “walk-

thru” of the CSB Campus.  She continued that the State Police were scheduled to 

return next week to finalize the “walk-thru” and also tour off-site programs to 

improve the overall safety of CSB buildings. 

 

 

A-1 



38 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

Page 9 

 

 

State & Local 

Hospitals At 

Bed Capacity At the request of Mrs. Christian, Mr. Ryan Dudley, Director of Crisis Services, 

spoke briefly on the State Hospitals which have been operating at, or over, bed 

capacity for months, which included their use of temporary beds.  Mr. Dudley 

reported that challenges not only affect the CSBs, but also have significant impact 

on the local Emergency Room Departments and Police and Sherriff Offices.  He 

noted that, locally, in an effort to work collaboratively with CSB partners in 

addressing these challenges, the H-NNCSB facilitates quarterly Community 

Stakeholder Meetings. Members were advised that while much of this had been 

anticipated to occur at some point, it has a significant impact to all, even with recent 

preparation around the holidays, particularly for individuals needing timely access 

to psychiatric inpatient care.   

 

Mr. Dudley provided that CSBs statewide consistently encounter difficulty 

securing local or state hospital beds which leads to individuals often remaining in 

the Emergency Room and in law enforcement custody for extended periods, at 

times or even for days.  Mr. Dudley continued that the State Hospitals census has 

also led to increased pressures and difficulties for H-NNCSB Discharge 

Planners.  He pointed out that the H-NNCSB is being very transparent about bed 

capacity challenges by way of Community Stakeholder Meetings, adding that this 

difficulty exists for children as well as adults.   

 

STEP VA  In closing on Informational Items, Mrs. Christian shared with Members of the 

Board the new theme created to help keep staff energized with the ongoing 

innovation of STEP VA.  She introduced that the FY20 theme for staff was, 

“S.T.E.P. Up Your Game” which was also printed on a banner for posting in the 

Board Room.    

 

Discussion  With regard to Recovery Month Open Houses, Mrs. Ven Thomas noted that she 

left the Southeastern Family Project Open House very impressed by the experience.  

She was also surprised to learn how long the Program has been in existence which 

says something about the good work that is being done and the level of staff 

commitment provided.  Additionally, Mrs. Thomas stated that she was very 

impressed with the increased security presence on the CSB Campus, adding that 

she recently had to do the same for her organization, and that it is certainly true that 

the State Police find all sorts of things that are compromising security.  She 

mentioned that her organization continues to implement some of the 

recommendations from their security audit done about a year and a half ago. 

 
A-1 



39 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

Page 10 

 

 

PROGRAM 

HIGHLIGHTS In the area of Program Highlights, Ms. Kimberly Thompson, Director of Human 

Resources, took the opportunity to invite available Members of the Board to the 

Annual Employee Appreciation Event scheduled on October 9th, at the Boo 

Williams Sportsplex.  Members were asked to come show their appreciation to CSB 

staff, and wear rubber soled or tennis shoes to the Complex.  While confirming  

Board Member attendance at last year’s event, she added that staff have decided to 

hold the event at the Sportsplex every year so as not to worry about weather 

conditions.  Members were informed of a shuttle services that would be available 

to and from the event, and that they will not just be supporting staff, they, too, will 

have fun if they can attend.  

 

  Moreover and in response to a Board Member’s question, Mrs. Christian clarified 

that while CSB services do not close, all staff are able to attend the event in shifts 

arranged by their Supervisors.  Mr. Morehouse, Board Chair, expressed that he had 

fun at last year’s event, and it gave him an opportunity to meet CSB staff.  He added 

that staff seemed to very much appreciate it as well. 

Board Member  

Comments Mr. Beatrice Dahlen, advised Members that while she did not have the information 

at her September Community Relations / Governmental Affairs meeting, the 

National Alliance for the Mentally Ill (NAMI) is holding “Family to Family” 

Classes on Tuesday’s at 6:00 p.m.  She added that the Classes last for ten weeks, 

and just started a week ago.  She asked that if any Member knows of anyone who 

would like information regarding the NAMI Family to Family Classes, brochures, 

or other information, to let her know, and she will communicate their requests to 

NAMI. 

 

  In response to a question from Mr. Morehouse regarding the CSBs connection to a 

recent billboard ad he saw for mental health, Mrs. Christian responded that every 

CSB has campaign billboards, radio ads, etc. that Members of the Board may see 

around.  Campaign ads for the Hampton-Newport News CSB are associated with 

VASTOP.org, promoting the H-NNCSB Warm Line, and other CSB services.  

 
PUBLIC 

COMMENT  There was no Public Comments received from guests or staff during the Board of 

Directors Meeting held on Thursday September 26, 2019. 

 

 
A-1 



40 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

Page 11 

 

 

CLOSING As the meeting came to a close, Members of the Board of Directors for the 

Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board were asked to take time to 

review their FY20 Monthly Planners for upcoming Standing Board Committee 

Meetings and CSB Events. 

   
ADJOURNMENT There being no further comments or questions regarding the September Meeting of 

the Board of Directors for the Hampton-Newport News Community Services 

Board, the meeting was adjourned at 6:03 p.m. 

 

 
   _________________________ ________________________  

   Thomas F. Morehouse, III  June Owens  

   Chair     Secretary  
 

 

 

 
Submitted by GMercado 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A-1 



41 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C-1 



42 
 

 

 

FY20 Monthly Planner 
 

October 2019 
 

 

 

01 – 04  Mental Health 1st Aid Training, Charlottesville  

02 – 04   VACSB 2019 Public Policy Conference, Roanoke VA 

07   9:00 AM Regional Leadership Team, Telephone Conference 

07   1:00 PM Mrs. Andrea Coleman, JBS/DBHDS, Telephone Conference 

08 11:30 AM  Executive Leadership Team Meeting 

09 11:00 AM Employee Appreciation Event 

11-12      DBHDS Needs Assessment Survey and Site Visit 

15 11:30 AM  Executive Leadership Team Meeting 

15   2:30 PM Emergency Services Stakeholders Group Meeting 

15   3:00 PM Local Human Rights Committee Meeting 

17   2:00 PM Supreme Court Drug Court Advisory Committee Meeting 

17   6:00 PM NN Sheriff’s 14th Annual Volunteer Appreciation Dinner 

20   3:00 PM NAACP 48th Annual Life Membership Awards Banquet 

21   4:00 PM Budget, Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 

21   4:30 PM Community Relations / Governmental Affairs Meeting 

21   6:00 PM Hampton Census Committee 

22 11:30 AM  Executive Leadership Team Meeting 

22   1:30 PM  Hampton Drug Treatment Court Graduation 

22   7:00 PM Newport News City Council Meeting 

24 12:00 PM Hampton Mayor’s Committee for People with Disabilities Luncheon 

24   5:00 PM  CSB Board of Directors Meeting 

25   8:30 AM Newport News Human Services Poverty Symposium 

28   9:00 AM  H-NNCSB Management Team Meeting 

28 10:00 AM DBHDS STEP VA Advisory Council Meeting, Richmond 

29 11:30 AM  Newport News State of the City Address 

 

 

  



43 
 

 

 

FY20 Monthly Planner 
 

November 2019 
 

 

 

01   9:30 AM VACSB Leadership Team, Conference Call 

04   9:00 AM Regional Leadership Team Retreat 

05 11:30 AM Executive Leadership Team Meeting 

07 12:00 PM H-NNCB Physicians Meeting  

11   H-NNCSB Closed - Holiday Observed  -  Veteran’s Day 

12 11:30 AM Executive Leadership Team Meeting 

13 11:30 AM H-NNCSB 30th Annual Thanksgiving Luncheon 

14   9:00 AM DBHDS Equity Meeting 

18   4:00 PM Budget, Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 

18   4:30 PM Community Relations / Governmental Affairs Meeting 

21   5:00 PM  CSB Board of Directors Meeting 

22 10:00 AM DBHDS STEP VA Advisory Council Meeting, Richmond 

25   9:00 AM  H-NNCSB Management Team Meeting 

28th ~ 29th   H-NNCSB Closed - Holiday Observed  -  Thanksgiving 


